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Before the 
FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

Washington, DC 20554 
 
In the Matter of 
 
Obscene, Indecent, and Profane  
Material Broadcast on KRCA 
 
_____________________________________ 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
 
 

 
 

COMPLAINT 
 

I. Introduction and Background 
 

1. Sex.  Profanity.  Nudity.  Violence.  Intense anti-gay themes, rhetoric and violence.  
Unedited.  Condoned.  Applauded.  And all accessible over the public airwaves in the 
middle of the day when children are likely to be present in the audience.  This is not a fair 
and accurate representation of the Latino community, it is extremely harmful to its 
viewers, especially gays and lesbians, and it airs twice daily on broadcast television 
across the country on EstrellaTV’s hit Spanish-language program, José Luis Sin Censura.   
 

2. This complaint is brought under 18 U.S.C. § 1464 (2011), 47 U.S.C. § 312 (2011), and 47 
U.S.C. § 503(b)(1)(D) (2011) to urge the Federal Communications Commission 
(“Commission”) to levy a forfeiture against Liberman Broadcasting, Inc. (“Liberman 
Broadcasting”), licensee of KRCA, Riverside, California, for the repeated and gratuitous 
broadcast of indecent, profane, and obscene material between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. on the program José Luis Sin Censura (or, in English, José Luis Uncensored).   
 

3. KRCA and Liberman Broadcasting air the pre-recorded, Spanish-language program José 
Luis Sin Censura twice daily, Monday through Friday, at 11 am and 6 pm PST, showing 
a total of 10 hours of José Luis Sin Censura per week.  José Luis Sin Censura is a pre-
taped talk show, hosted by José Luis Gonzalez, which is part of Liberman Broadcasting’s 
EstrellaTV programming.  
 

4. José Luis Sin Censura includes adult sexual content presented in shocking and vulgar 
segments, including overt sex acts, profanity, and nudity.  In addition, it repeatedly 
defames gays and lesbians and legitimizes violence as a way of dealing with a variety of 
social issues, but especially violence against individuals who are actually or perceived to 
be gay. 

 
5. True to its name, José Luis Sin Censura regularly contains uncensored, Spanish-language 

profanity and expletives.  In certain instances, the same word will be edited out, or 
“bleeped,” in one episode but will remain unedited and clearly discernible in another.  
The show presents unedited language and images depicting sexual functions including 
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Spanish words that translate to “fucking” and “assfucker,” and minimally edited video 
depictions of couples engaging in sexual intercourse.  José Luis Sin Censura also features 
minimally edited and unedited instances of nudity including views of female breasts, 
genitalia, and buttocks presented in an overtly sexual manner.   
 

6. José Luis Sin Censura includes unedited, highly offensive, defamatory language against 
gay men, women, and Latinos including multiple Spanish words that translate to 
“faggot,” and other words such as “whore” and “wetback.”  In addition, José Luis Sin 
Censura regularly contains instances in which members of the audience and guests are 
incited to violence against one another, often because one party is actually or perceived to 
be gay.   
 

7. José Luis Sin Censura, by all available accounts, is a popular program.  According to 
Nielsen Media Research’s July 2009 Sweeps data, José Luis Sin Censura came in second 
place in both of its time slots with men aged 18-49, a coveted demographic.1  On the web, 
a Google search of José Luis Sin Censura generated over 400,000 hits, and the most 
popular of the over 500 YouTube videos of the program has been viewed almost two 
million times.   
 

8. Many concerned members of the Latino community have expressed disgust with this 
show, and worry about the message it sends to our children.  Further, as shown by 
indecency complaints filed with the Commission, members of our community, and other 
communities around the country, have become angry to the point of taking action and 
pleading for government intervention. 
 

9. Indeed, according to a recent Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request filed by 
Complainants, as of November 2010 the Commission had received at least 79 indecency 
complaints about this program, with many of these complaints having been filed in the 
past two years as EstrellaTV has increased its national presence.  App. E.  This is a large 
number of complaints considering that, until very recently this show has had a relatively 
small, broadcast footprint in a few markets.  Further, the Spanish-speaking community 
has, traditionally, filed very few indecency complaints.  App. F. 

 
10. There are multiple allegations, in the indecency complaints received through FOIA, of 

José Luis Sin Censura producers encouraging or even ordering guests to engage in 
violence with one another.  There is one particularly shocking complaint that alleges that 
producers confiscated personal belongings from guests, falsely imprisoned them, coerced 
them into signing waivers, and then made them go in front of the camera to be beaten by 
larger, stronger guests.  There is another complaint from an actor who contends that he 
appeared on the show with the understanding that there would be simulated violence, 
however, once taping started, the other guest was instructed to engage in actual violence. 
 

                                                
1 Press Release, Liberman Broad. Inc., July Sweeps a Success for Estrella TV (Aug. 19, 2009), 
http://www.lbimedia.com/Media/PressReleases/20090819_EstrellaTVJulySweeps.pdf. 
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11. It appears that Liberman Broadcasting executives do not feel the need to make a good 
faith effort to comply with Commission rules and the law and believe that Spanish-
language programming is somewhat excused from FCC review.  In a 2006 interview with 
Billboard Magazine, Eduardo León, then Vice President of Programming, expressed that, 
“There isn’t an exact translation for any words.”  He went on to say that, “If somebody 
wanted to file a complaint with the FCC with words like this [profanity], they would have 
a really hard time.”  The full article from Billboard is attached in Appendix F.  According 
to a running theme in the indecency complaints received via FOIA, many members of the 
community feel that he has succeeded in undermining the Commission’s rules.  Some 
language from the complaints include pleas such as, “Are the rules not the same for 
spanish[sic.] speaking channels?” or “I sincerely hope that Spanish language stations are 
not exempt from the laws of broadcasting” or “I AM NOT AWARE IF THE FCC HAS 
RULES FOR SPANISH CONTENT.”  App. E at 6, 20, 25. 
 

II. Parties 
 

12. The National Hispanic Media Coalition is a twenty-five year old non-profit organization, 
based in Pasadena, CA, within the Los Angeles DMA, that aims to (1) improve the image 
of American Latinos as portrayed by the media; (2) increase Latino employment in all 
facets of the media industry; and (3) advocate for media and telecommunication policies 
that benefit the Latino community. 
 

13. The Gay & Lesbian Alliance Against Defamation (GLAAD) is a twenty-five year old 
non-profit organization, based in Los Angeles, CA, that amplifies the voice of the 
lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender community by empowering real people to share 
their stories, holding the media accountable for the words and images they present, and 
helping grassroots organizations communicate effectively.  

 
14. KRCA is a Spanish language broadcast television station that serves the Los Angeles 

metropolitan area.  KRCA is owned and operated by licensee, Liberman Broadcasting, 
through an intermediary company, KRCA License, LLC.  KRCA broadcasts EstrellaTV 
content, including the talk show, José Luis Sin Censura, produced by Liberman 
Broadcasting. 

 
15. Liberman Broadcasting is the leading privately held owner of Spanish-language TV and 

radio stations and the largest producer of Spanish television programming in the United 
States. Liberman Broadcasting owns and operates nine television stations and 21 radio 
stations. Liberman Broadcasting launched the EstrellaTV network nationwide in 
September 2009 and now has a presence in 21 of the top 25 Hispanic markets and a reach 
of approximately 77 percent of the U.S. Hispanic population.2  

 

                                                
2 Press Release, Liberman Broad. Inc., EstrellaTV Now Reaches 10 California Markets with the 
Launch of its Latest Affiliate Deal (Dec. 1, 2010), 
http://www.lbimedia.com/Media/PressReleases/12.01.10%20--%20EstrellaTV%20Monterey-
Salinas%20release%20-%20FINAL.pdf. 
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III. Facts 
 

16. The following paragraphs contain descriptions and analysis of selected episodes of José 
Luis Sin Censura broadcast by Liberman Broadcasting on KRCA between June 18, 2010 
and November 11, 2010.  For brevity and convenience, unless otherwise noted, the 
descriptions are based on an English translation of material originally aired in Spanish.  
Complainants understand that there may be many different English translations of each 
Spanish word based on context or country of origin.  Complainants are confident that the 
translations provided are accurate based on the context of the scenes and knowledge of 
Spanish usage.  The language depicted was only edited where a “[bleep]” appears in the 
transcript.  A detailed analysis of the words used can be found in Appendix A.  The 
complete transcripts of each depicted scene are attached in Appendix B.  A DVD 
containing the recorded clips is attached in Appendix C.   

 
17. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura that was broadcast on KRCA on Friday, June 18, 

2010 at 6:00 pm complainants witnessed the following:  A woman performs a striptease 
for the audience.  The woman gyrates provocatively and exposes her breasts, genitalia, 
and buttocks as the audience cheers, whistles, and chants, “Take it off! Take it off!” (the 
audience chants in English).  Views of the woman’s breasts, genitalia, and buttocks are 
partially obscured by blurring, pixilation, and a pink, star graphic.  However, despite the 
half-hearted attempt to edit the material, the woman can clearly be seen exposing herself 
and touching herself in a provocative manner, much to the delight of the crowd. App. B, 
Transcript # 1. 
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Screenshot from episode broadcast on 6/18/10 

 
18. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura that was broadcast on KRCA on Monday, June 

21, 2010 at 6:00 pm, complainants witnessed the following:  The host, José Luis, holds 
his microphone for a woman in the audience and allows her to berate a guest on the 
program.  The woman in the audience proclaims that the guest is an “assfucker” and 
offers to teach him how to “make love,” implying that she would have sexual intercourse 
with him in an attempt to make him a heterosexual.  She also voices her opinion that, as a 
gay man, he sets a bad example for society.  After the guest responds that he is happy the 
way he is, the audience chants, “Faggot!  Faggot!  Faggot!”  In the same episode, José 
Luis offers his microphone to a group of men in the audience who verbally assault a guest 
on stage who appears to be a man dressed as a woman.  The men call the guest a “fuckin’ 
faggot,” a “bastard,” and a “disgrace to the world.”  App. B, Transcript # 2, 3. 
 

19. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura that was broadcast on KRCA on Wednesday, 
June 30, 2010 at 11:00 am, complainants witnessed the following:  José Luis offers his 
microphone to an audience member and asks his opinion of the infidelity of a guest’s 
girlfriend with another woman.  The audience member simply replies that the other 
guests are lesbians.  One of the guests takes offense and calls the audience member a 
“dumbass.”  On that note, the audience as a whole begins chanting, “Lesbians! Lesbians! 
Lesbians!”  The audience member with the microphone then says that the guest lost his 
girlfriend to the other woman because he has a small penis.  The guest then challenges 
the audience member to come up to the stage to view his penis and determine its size.  At 
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that, the audience begins chanting, “Suck it a little! Suck it a little!” – requesting that 
somebody perform oral sex on the guest to confirm the size of his penis.  The audience 
member and the guest begin to argue and the audience member implies that he will 
convert the lesbian guest “back into a woman” by having sexual intercourse with her.  
App. B, Transcript # 4. 

 
20. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Monday, July 5, 2010 at 

11:00 am, complainants witnessed the following:  José Luis beckons an audience member 
to come to the front and offer a comment to the guest.  The audience member takes the 
microphone and exclaims, “Small [bleep], faggot.  Suck my [bleep].”  The guest responds 
by calling the audience member a “fuckin’ wetback.”  After some argument, the audience 
member calls the guest a “fuckin’ faggot” and the guest replies that the audience member 
is a “fuckin’ monkey.”  At that, the audience member is joined by the entire audience in 
chanting, “Assfucker! Assfucker! Assfucker!”  On the same episode, the audience directs 
a chants “Show us! Show us!” at a female guest. The female guest obliges the audience 
by revealing her breasts, which are covered using pink, star graphics.  After exposing her 
breasts, the woman exclaims, “what’s down there is delicious” and gestures to her 
genitalia.  App. B, Transcript # 5, 6. 

 
Screenshot from episode broadcast on 7/5/10 
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21. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Tuesday, July 13, 2010 
at 11:00 am, complainants witnessed the following:  José Luis introduces a guest and 
summons him from backstage as the audience chants, “Faggot! Faggot! Faggot!”  App. 
B, Transcript # 7. 
 

22. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Wednesday, September 
8, 2010 at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  José Luis offers his 
microphone to a member of the audience so that he may comment on the guest.  One 
audience member calls the guest a “faggot.”  Another audience implies that it is better to 
be a heterosexual exclaiming, “Long live the women!” The audience member is then 
allowed to rush on stage and slam the guest into the ground as the audience cheers.  In the 
same episode, music plays as a woman on stage gyrates and removes her shirt to expose 
her breasts.  For the majority of her dance, her breasts are not obscured and can be seen 
clearly.  The woman continues to dance and fondle herself as the audience cheers.  App. 
B, Transcript # 8, 9. 

 
Screenshot from episode broadcast on 9/8/10 

 
23. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Thursday, September 9, 

2010 at 11:00 am, complainants witnessed the following:  Two audience members fight 
on stage over a woman.  The guest who was cheated on repeatedly calls the other man a 
“[bleep]in’ faggot” as he repeatedly strikes him and pushes him to the floor.  App. B, 
Transcript # 10. 
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24. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Monday, September 20, 

2010 at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  Two female guests are 
encouraged to fight on stage as the audience and cast members represented as “security 
guards” watch without intervening.  The guests throw multiple punches at each other with 
many connecting to their intended targets.  The guests fall to the ground and continue 
striking one another as the audience cheers.  During the fight, one woman’s shirt is 
ripped, exposing her breasts, which are pixilated.  When the audience notices her exposed 
breasts they begin chanting, “José Luis! José Luis! José Luis!”  App. B, Transcript # 11. 

 
25. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Friday, October 15, 2010 

at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  José Luis asks a member of the 
audience what he does for a living.  The audience member’s response is bleeped out.  
José Luis retorts that the audience member is all talk but no action and the audience 
directs a chant of “Faggot! Faggot! Faggot!” at the audience member.  In the same 
episode, José Luis holds his microphone out to an audience member so that the audience 
member may offer a comment about a guest.  The audience member says that he thinks 
the guest is a “fucking faggot, son of a mother[bleep]” who is “not worth anything.”  He 
then tells the guest to “go [bleep]!” and rushes to the stage to begin beating the guest.  As 
the guests and audience member fight, the crowd cheers and chants, encouraging the 
audience member to hit the guest “hard.”  App. B, Transcript # 12, 13. 

 
26. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Monday, October 18, 

2010 at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  Music plays as a woman in 
revealing lingerie walks through the audience, touching herself and audience members 
provocatively.  She approaches one audience member and stands on his chair so that she 
can thrust her genitalia into his face.  She then moves on and arrives at another audience 
member where she removes her shorts and rubs her buttocks and genitalia on the man’s 
lap.  Her genitalia are pixilated.  The audience cheers throughout.  App. B, Transcript # 
14. 
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Screenshot from episode broadcast on 10/18/10 

 
27. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Friday, October 22, 2010 

at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  As guests fight on stage, José Luis 
attempts to get their attention so that an audience member can offer his opinion.  Once 
the guests settle down, the audience member says to the guest, “You’re a fucking whore 
faggot.”  The audience member then, immediately, rushes the guest on stage and begins 
beating him as the audience cheers.  App. B, Transcript # 15. 

 
28. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Wednesday, October 27, 

2010 at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  The guests are a male and 
female who are married.  José Luis beckons them to a video monitor and asks the female 
if she works a lot and would like to know what her husband does at home when she isn’t 
there.  On the screen, an image is displayed that shows three individuals engaged in 
sexual intercourse in a variety of positions as recorded by a hidden camera.  The video 
leaves very little to the imagination, except that a pink, star graphic obscures the lower 
portions of their bodies.  The wife begins to slap the husband in anger.  José Luis asks an 
audience member what he thinks of the woman on the video.  The audience member 
replies, “That she’s a fucking whore!”  App. B, Transcript # 16. 

 



 10 
 

 
Screenshot from episode broadcast on 10/27/10 

 
29. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Thursday, November 4, 

2010 at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  As guests argue on stage and 
accuse each other of being undocumented immigrants, the audience chants, “Faggot! 
Faggot! Faggot!”  In the same episode, the audience chants, “Faggot! Faggot! Faggot!”  
José Luis offers his microphone to a member of the audience.  The audience takes the 
microphone and exclaims, “He’s a faggot, he’s stupid.”  The guest then rushes towards 
the man in the audience in anger.  App. B, Transcript # 17, 18. 

 
30. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Friday, November 5, 

2010 at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  One guest discusses hiring a 
prostitute for another guest saying, “I hired a whore, so that she could make him fall in 
love.”  A bell rings and a scantily clad woman holding a placard walks through, 
apparently to simulate the atmosphere of a boxing match.  As the guests fight on the floor 
of the stage, a woman walks across the front of the stage with the placard.  This woman is 
wearing a skirt that exposes her entire buttocks.  As she walks across the stage, the 
camera remains in a fixed, close-up shot of her buttocks with the brawl occurring 
immediately in front of her.  App. B, Transcript # 19. 
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Screenshot from episode broadcast on 11/5/10 

 
31. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Thursday, November 11, 

2010 at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  Two guests argue on stage and 
call each other “faggots.”  Then, a member of the audience calls one of the guests a 
“faggot.” The guest implies that he is challenging the audience member to a fight by 
asking, “Want to see that I’m not a faggot?”  He then beckons the audience member over 
to him.  The audience member stays at his seat and calls both guests “faggots.”  On the 
same episode, photos of a guest are displayed on a television monitor.  One of the photos, 
which is obscured by a pink, star graphic, appears to depict the man without any clothes 
on.  Audience members chant “Faggot! Faggot!”  A guest is then permitted to ask the 
man, “Are you sure it’s not you who’s the faggot?  You sure you’re not a faggot, 
dumbass?”  App. B, Transcript # 20, 21. 
 

32. On an episode of José Luis Sin Censura broadcast on KRCA on Tuesday, December 7, 
2010 at 11:00am, complainants witnessed the following:  Two male cousins are guests on 
stage.  One guest is confronting the other guest for always calling him a “faggot.”  He is 
then beaten and thrown about the stage by the first man.  In order to explain why he 
always calls his cousin a “faggot,” the man says, “Yeah, dumbass, fucking faggot.  All 
my friends see him there, going around with all his little faggotries like a total faggot.”  
The other man again says that the statements about him are inaccurate, as he fearfully 
backs away.  App. B, Transcript # 22.   
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IV. Legal Authority 
 

33. The Commission has the authority to levy civil penalties against broadcasters who violate 
18 U.S.C. § 1464, which makes it a crime to utter “any obscene, indecent, or profane 
language by means of radio communication.”  The Commission may punish any violation 
of § 1464 by revoking a station’s license or by issuing a cease and desist order to stop the 
station from broadcasting the offending program.  47 U.S.C. § 312(a)(6), (b).  The 
Commission may also punish a violation of § 1464 by the imposition of a forfeiture 
penalty.  47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(1)(D).   

 
34. The material documented above, witnessed in various episodes of José Luis Sin Censura, 

is obscene, indecent, and profane material broadcast by means of radio communication 
and therefore violates 18 U.S.C. § 1464.  The Commission has authority to take remedial 
measures and/or impose pecuniary sanctions. 

 
V. Prayer For Relief 

 
35. Complainants are aware that the Commission is currently engaged in litigation to defend 

its policies on indecency and profanity.  However, complainants believe that the conduct 
detailed in this complaint is so egregious as to require immediate remedial action.  
Complainants respectfully request that the Commission: 
 

a. find Liberman Broadcasting and KRCA in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1464 for the 
broadcast of obscene, indecent, and profane material. 

 
b. order Liberman Broadcasting and KRCA to cease and desist broadcast of the 

offending show, José Luis Sin Censura, in accordance with 47 U.S.C. § 312(b). 
 

c. conduct a further investigation of Liberman Broadcasting and determine whether 
other violations of § 1464 have occurred, either on KRCA and on other 
Liberman/EstrellaTV stations and affiliates. 

 
d. levy a forfeiture against Liberman Broadcasting for each violation of § 1464 in 

accordance with 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(1)(D).   
 

e. address all other unresolved complaints against José Luis Sin Censura that are 
currently before the Commission.  App. E. 

 
f. order any other relief that the Commission may deem appropriate. 

 
 

 

 



 13 
 

 
 
 
 February 28, 2011 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
________________________ 
Alex Nogales 
President and CEO 
National Hispanic Media Coalition 
55 South Grand Avenue 
Pasadena, CA 91105 
 
 

 
________________________ 
Jarrett Tomas Barrios, Esq. 
President 
Gay & Lesbian Alliance Against 
Defamation 
5455 Wilshire Boulevard, 15th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA  90036 
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DECLARATION OF ALEX NOGALES 
 

1. I, Alex Nogales, am President and CEO of the National Hispanic Media Coalition, located at 
55 South Grand Avenue, Pasadena, California 91105. 
 

2. I live in the Los Angeles viewing market and I am a regular viewer of the television stations 
serving the area, including KRCA. 
 

3. I have viewed the program José Luis Sin Censura and witnessed indecent and profane 
content broadcast on KRCA between the hours of 6:00 AM and 10:00 PM including all of 
the material described in the “Facts” section of the foregoing complaint. 

 
4. The continued broadcast of José Luis Sin Censura on KRCA by Liberman Broadcasting 

harms me by allowing a broadcaster to use its license counter to the public interest by 
broadcasting material that is harmful to the community and in violation of the law. The 
programming that I have witnessed on KRCA regularly contains highly offensive and vulgar 
language and images, as well as hateful and discriminatory speech and violence that targets 
minority groups.  The show legitimizes violence against certain, vulnerable groups and 
encourages audience members and guest to engage in this violence.  By using its license to 
repeatedly broadcast this type of indecent and profane material, especially during the hours in 
which children are likely to be in the audience, KRCA has violated the rules of the 
Commission and the laws of the United States of America.  In light of these violations, 
KRCA should be ordered to cease and desist the broadcast of this program and be held 
accountable for any violations already perpetrated. 
 

5. This Declaration attests that I have read and support of the foregoing Complaint. 
 
This statement is true to my personal knowledge, and is made under penalty of perjury of the 
laws of the United States of America. 
 
Date Executed:  February 28, 2010 
 
 
 
  
 

  
 __________________________________ 
 
 Alex Nogales 
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DECLARATION OF MONICA TRASANDES 
 

1. I, Monica Trasandes, am the Director of Spanish Language Media at the Gay & Lesbian 
Alliance Against Defamation, located at 5455 Wilshire Blvd, #1500 Los Angeles, California 
90036. 

 
2. I live in the Los Angeles viewing market and I am a regular viewer of the television stations 

serving the area, including KRCA. 
 

3. I have viewed the program José Luis Sin Censura and witnessed indecent and profane 
content broadcast on KRCA between the hours of 6:00 AM and 10:00 PM including all of 
the material described in the “Facts” section of this complaint. 
 

4. The continued broadcast of José Luis Sin Censura on KRCA by Liberman Broadcasting 
harms me by allowing a broadcaster to use its license counter to the public interest by 
broadcasting material that is harmful to the community and in violation of the law. The 
programming that I have witnessed on KRCA regularly contains highly offensive and vulgar 
language and images, as well as hateful and discriminatory speech and violence that targets 
minority groups.  The show legitimizes violence against certain, vulnerable groups and 
encourages audience members and guest to engage in this violence.  By using its license to 
repeatedly broadcast this type of indecent and profane material, especially during the hours in 
which children are likely to be in the audience, KRCA has violated the rules of the 
Commission and the laws of the United States of America.  In light of these violations, 
KRCA should be ordered to cease and desist the broadcast of this program and be held 
accountable for any violations already perpetrated. 
 

5. This Declaration attests that I have read and support of the foregoing Complaint. 
 
This statement is true to my personal knowledge, and is made under penalty of perjury of the 
laws of the United States of America. 
 
Date Executed:  February 28, 2010 
 
 
 
  

  
 __________________________________ 
 
 Monica Trasandes 
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Appendix A: 
Note on Translation 

 
  



José Luis Sin Censura 
Clip Transcripts from Episodes Aired from June to November 2010 

 
Editors’ Note: The Spanish language is far from universal in terms of its lexicon. In fact, words that have 
pejorative connotations in certain countries may indeed have a completely different meaning in other countries. To 
verify our understanding of the connotation of the words used as well as to ensure that we provided the most precise 
English-language translation possible, we utilized the Real Academia Española (“Royal Spanish Academy,” the 
official royal institution responsible for regulating the Spanish language) dictionary as well as UrbanDictionary.com.  
 
Based on context and the fact that the host, José Luis González, as well as the audience is primarily Mexican and 
Mexican-American, we can deduce with great certainty that, in general, the words are employed in the pejorative 
manner that are used in Mexico. However, there are instances in which pejorative terms from other countries are 
employed. The following is a list of defamatory words found in the transcripts, which also include definitions of 
their pejorative meanings (and whenever possible, their non-pejorative meanings), and an incomplete list of 
countries in which these connotations are used. 
 

• Cabron usually means dick or bastard (Urban Dictionary). 

• Chupito comes from “chupar,” which means to suck (Urban Dictionary).  Chupito is a little suck. 

! Culero comes from the word “culo,” which means asshole.  Culero can have different meanings just like 
asshole does - it even is used between friends.  When used to refer to gay men it translates to 
“assfucker.”(Urban Dictionary). 

! Hueco (literally, “hollow”) is a pejorative term for gay people used primarily in Guatemala and Chile.  It 
most resembles faggot; literally, "hole" (offensive) (Urban Dictionary). 

! Joto, is a pejorative term for gay people used in Mexico.  The best English approximation is "faggot." 
(Urban Dictionary). 

! Maricón, also “marica,” is the universal pejorative term against gay men used across Spanish-speaking 
countries. It means: (1) Derogatory term; crude word for a gay man used by straight men and women to 
insult gay men or to question the masculinity of straight men. Comparable to faggot.  (2) A crude word for 
transgender men and women, comparable to “tranny” but more rude.  (3) Affectionate term of address used 
by certain gay men to address other gay men, often in jest.  (4) Term of address used by many South 
American girls, especially Chileans, to address one another (Urban Dictionary). 

! Pendejo can mean idiot, stupid, or dumbass. (Urban Dictionary) 

! Pinche means: (1) Kitchen boy. The guys who clean up the Chef's mess and scrub the frying pans and carry 
stuff around. In this context it's still used in Spain.  (2) In Mexico, it's an all-purpose insult enhancer, which 
would be roughly equivalent to the use of *fucking* in English.  Pinche is also strongly associated with 
cursing in Mexican Spanish and the very moment you use it gives you away as a Mexican national.  (3) In 
Mexico, it's also used as an adjective to describe something as insignificant, lousy, miserable or worthless. 
(Urban Dictionary). 

! Puñal, (and its derivative puñalón) is a pejorative term for gay people in Mexico.  The term puña literally 
refers to an assassin’s dagger; the type of dagger assassins would have used in millennia gone by to back-
stab a victim to death. Usually these weapons were poison tipped to ensure that they got the job done. Puñal 
is an adjective derived from puña. Something that is puñal has the quality of an assassin’s poisoned dagger. 
Non-Spanish speaking Mexicans sometimes misuse the word as a noun. Metaphorically, the term refers to a 
sneaky gay male who you can't turn your back on because he has a queer eye for straight guys. He may 
"back stab you with his poison tipped dagger" if you turn your back on him, or bend over for soap.   
The term could be used to describe the qualities of a jailhouse rapist who will nail you if you bend over for 
soap in the shower. (Urban Dictionary). 



! Puta Madre, Spanish slang. "Puta" means roughly "fuck" or "bitch," and "madre" means "mother." The 
two words together become a common expletive meaning "holy shit" or "mother fucker." (Urban 
Dictionary). 

! Puto, is a pejorative term for gay people used in Mexico, Argentina, and Uruguay, among others. However, 
in other countries or territories such as El Salvador, Puerto Rico and Cuba, it refers to a promiscuous man 
regardless of sexual orientation.   

! Tortillera, is a widely-used pejorative term against lesbians, used across Spanish-speaking countries.  The 
closest English equivalent is “dyke.”  

! Vete a la chingada is a strong insult meaning "send yourself to that horrible fucking place.” (Urban 
Dictionary) 
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Appendix B: 
Transcripts 

 
 
  



Transcript #1 – June 18, 2010, 6:00 pm PST 
 

THIS CLIP CONTAINS NUDITY BUT NO DIALOGUE 
 
 

Transcript #2 – June 21, 2010, 6:00 pm PST 
 

 
Transcript #3 – June 21, 2010, 6:00 pm PST 

 
 Spanish English 

Guest: 
 
Various Audience: 
 
 
Guest: 
 
 
Various Audience: 
 

 

¡Las gordas no me gustan! 
 
¡Puto maricón! ¡Puto! ¡Desgracia, cabrón! 
¡Desgracia del mundo! 
 
¡Te duele porque no tienes mi cuerpo, 
gorda! ¡Gorda! ¡Gordis! 
 
¡Pinche maricón! ¡Puto! 

I don’t like fat ones! 
 
Flaming faggot! Faggot! Disgrace, 
bastard! Disgrace to the world! 
 
It just hurts you because you don’t have 
my body, fatty! Fatty! Fatty! 
 
Fuckin’ Faggot! Faggot! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Spanish English 
Audience Member: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Guest: 
 
José Luis González: 
 
 
Audience: 
 
José Luis González: 
 

 

¡El chaparro este que se convirtió en 
culero, es porque no ha conocido una 
mujer! ¡Vente, te voy a enseñar cómo 
hacer el amor! ¡Vente, tú que te has 
convertido en joto, vente pa’cá! Esto es 
ser mujer ¿No te has metido con una 
mujer, ah? Ese es ser un mal ejemplo pa’ 
la sociedad, no hombre, dónde ponés a tu 
tierra, cabrón! 
 
 
Yo soy feliz así. 
 
Él dijo que también había tenido novias 
pero que no le habían gustado. 
 
¡Puto! ¡Puto! ¡Puto! ¡Puto! ¡Puto! 
 
¿Qué pasó?  

This midget right here that turned into a 
assfucker, it’s because he hasn’t met a 
woman! Come here, I’m going to teach 
you how to make love! Come on, you, the 
one that’s turned into a faggot, come over 
here! This is what a woman is. You 
haven’t been with a woman, huh? That’s 
being a bad example for society, look 
where you’re putting your country, 
bastard!    
 
I’m happy this way. 
 
He said he has also had girlfriends but he 
didn’t like them. 
 
Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! 
Faggot! 
 
What happened? 



Transcript #4 – June 30, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
José Luis González: 
 
 
 
Audience Member: 
 
Guest: 
 
Audience: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
 
Guest: 
 
 
Audience: 
 
 
Guest: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
Guest: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
 
Audience: 

Póngase de pie. Mire, como ve acá al 
señor le quitaron la, la mujer, otra mujer, 
más allí están agarradas de las manos. 
 
Oooo, son tortilleras, no compadre. 
 
¡Qué te importa, pendejo!   
            
¡Tortillera! ¡Tortillera! ¡Tortillera! 
 
¡Se la quitó porque la tiene chiquita! 
 
 
¿Qué te importa? A ver, ven… 
[Parcialmente inaudible] 
 
¡Chupito! ¡Chupito! ¡Chupito! 
 
 
¡Cállate el hocico pendejo! 
 
¿Qué vas hacerme a mí, mujer?  
 
¡Cállate el hocico! 
 
¡Te agarro y te vuelvo a convertir en 
mujer! 
 
¡Chupitos! ¡Chupitos! ¡Chupitos! 
 

Stand up. Look, what do you think, 
another woman stole this man’s wife, 
there they are holding hands. 
 
Oooo, they’re dykes, no man. 
 
What’s it to you, dumbass! 
 
Dyke! Dyke! Dyke!  
 
They took her because he has a small 
one! 
 
What’s it to you? Let’s see, 
come…[partially inaudible] 
 
Suck it a little! Suck it a little! Suck it a 
little! 
 
Shut your mouth, dumbass! 
 
What are you going to do to me, woman? 
 
Shut your mouth! 
 
I’ll take you and turn you into a woman! 
 
 
Suck it a little! Suck it a little! Suck it a 
little! 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Transcript #5 – July 5, 2010 – 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Audience Member: 
 
Guest 1: 
 
 
 
Audience Member: 
 
Guest 1: 
 
 
 
Audience Member: 
 
Guest 2: 
 
Audience: 

 

**** chiquito, puto. Chupa mi ****. 
 
¿Es todo, es todo? ¡Sabes que es mejor 
que llames a inmigración porque hay un 
pinche mojado aquí!  
 
¡Puto!  
 
¡Tú eres el único mojado! ¿Qué andas 
haciendo aquí? ¿Tienes tu “green-card”? 
 
 
Cálmate güey! ¡Pinche puto!  
 
¡Es un pinche chango!  
 
¡Culero! ¡Culero! ¡Culero! ¡Culero!  
 
 

Small ****.  Suck my ****. 
 
That’s it? That’s it? You know what, you 
better call immigration because there’s a 
fucking wetback here. 
 
Faggot! 
 
You’re the only wetback! What are you 
doing here? Do you have your green 
card? 
 
Calm down asshole. Fucking faggot. 
 
He’s a fucking ape! 
 
Assfucker! Assfucker! Assfucker! 
Assfucker! 

 
 

Transcript #6 – July 5, 2010 – 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Audience: 
 
Guest: 
 
 
Audience: 
 
José Luis González:  
 
 
 

Que enseñe, que enseñe!    
    
¿Y por qué dicen no? ¡Pero lo de abajo sí 
está rico! 
 
 [Canto inaudible]        
                   
Momentito, momentito, momentito. Tú… 
 
 

Show us, show us! 
 
And why do you say no? But what’s down 
there is delicious! 
 
 [Inaudible chant] 
 
Just a moment, just a moment, just a 
moment. You… 
 

 
 

Transcript #7 – July 13, 2010 – 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
José Luis González: 
 
 
 
Audience: 

Un aplauso para José Goronsillo 
[Parcialmente inaudible] del Norte. Que 
pase adelante, música.   
               
¡Puto! ¡Puto! ¡Puto! ¡Puto! ¡Puto! ¡Puto! 
¡Puto! 
 

A round of applause for José Goronsillo 
[partially inaudible] del Norte. Come 
forward, music. 
 
Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! 
Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! 

 
 



Transcript #8 – September 8, 2010 – 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Audience Member 1: 
 
Guest: 
 
Audience Member 2: 
 
José Luis González: 
 
Audience Member 2: 
 
José Luis González: 
 
Audience Member 1: 
 
 

Yo no creo pa’ nada, es un gay! 
 
Envidioso!  
 
Nada, nada… 
 
Que es qué? 
 
Es, es  joto! 
 
¿Ya viste lo que te dijo? 
 
Mientras que tenga un trabajo, está bien. 
Chale, arriba las mujeres! [Empieza a 
pelearse con el invitado] 
 

I don’t believe it at all, he’s a gay! 
 
Envious! 
 
Nothing, nothing… 
 
That he’s what? 
 
He’s, he’s a faggot! 
 
You see what he just said? 
 
As long as you have a job, it’s fine. Come 
on, long live women! [He begins to fight 
with the guest] 

 
 

Transcript #9 – September 8, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

THIS CLIP CONTAINS NUDITY BUT NO DIALOGUE 
 
 

Transcript #10 – September 9, 2010 – 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Guest 1: 
 
 
Guest 2: 
 
Guest 3: 
 
 
Audience: 
 
Guest 1: 

¿Con este p****e joto me estás 
engañando, con este p****e joto?? 
 
Sí, con este me voy a casar, con él. 
 
¿Con este p****e puto me andas 
engañando? [Parcialmente inaudible] 
 
Puñal! Puñal! 
 
Mira ve, mira ese p***e joto. ¡Mira, ve! 
 

You’re cheating on me with this f*c***g 
faggot, with this f*c***g faggot? 
 
Yes, I’m marrying this one, with him. 
 
You’re cheating on me with this f*c***g 
faggot? [Partially inaudible] 
 
Faggot! Faggot! 
 
Look see, look at that f*c***g faggot. 
Look, look! 
 

 
 
 

Transcript #11 – September 20, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

THIS CLIP CONTAINS VIOLENCE AND NUDITY BUT NO DIALOGUE 
 
 
 



Transcript #12 – October 15, 2010 – 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
José Luis González: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
José Luis González: 
 
 
Audience: 
 

¿Usted a qué se dedica la verdad? 
 
Yo soy puro ****. 
 
No, para mí que usted es puro pájaro 
nalgón. 
 
¡Puñalón! ¡Puñalón! ¡Puñalón! ¡Puñalón! 
¡Puñalón! 
 

What do you do for a living? 
 
I am a ****. 
 
No, seems to me that you’re a big butt 
bird [all talk but no action]. 
 
Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! 
Faggot! 

 
 

Transcript #13 – October 15, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
 
 
José Luis González: 
 
Audience Member 1: 
 
 
 
 
Audience Member 2: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Audience: 

(Pareja peleando frente a todos.) 
 
Un momento, un comentario para ti.  
 
¡Yo pienso que ese güey es un pinche 
puñal, un hijo de su p**a madre, no vale 
ni madres ese güey, que se vaya a la 
ch***ada! 
 
[Parcialmente inaudible] 
 
(Segundo miembro de la audiencia grita 
algo difícil de entender que impulsa al 
primero contra el invitado y lo empieza a 
golpear.)  
 
¡Duro! ¡Duro! ¡Duro! ¡Duro! ¡Duro! 
¡Duro! 

(A couple is fighting on stage.) 
 
Wait a moment, a comment for for you. 
 
I think that that dumbass is a fucking 
faggot, son of a f*****g bitch, he’s not 
worth shit that dumbass, go f**k yourself! 
 
 
[Partially inaudible] 
 
(Second audience member yells 
something unclear then rushes the stage 
to fight the guest.)   
 
 
Hard! Hard! Hard! Hard! Hard! Hard!  
  

 
 

Transcript #14 – October 18, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

THIS CLIP CONTAINS NUDITY BUT NO DIALOGUE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Transcript #15 – October 22, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
José Luis González: 
 
 
 
 
Audience Member: 
 
 

Tenemos una opinión, una opinión para 
ti. Una opinión para ti, a ver. ¡René, 
René, René! ¡Una opinión acá,  René, 
René! Una opinión para ti acá. 
 
¡Eres un pinche puto maricón!  
 
(Miembro de la audiencia empieza a 
golpear al invitado)  
 

We have an opinion, an opinion for you. 
An opinion for you, lets see. René, René, 
René! An opinion here, René, René! An 
opinion for you here. 
 
You’re a fucking faggot! 
 
(Audience member then proceeds to fight 
the guest on stage) 
 

 
 

Transcript #16 – October 27, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
José Luis González: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Guest 1: 
 
Guest 2: 
 
 
Guest 1: 
 
Guest 2: 
 
Audience: 
 
José Luis González: 
 
 
Audience Member: 
 
 

¿Tú trabajas mucho, no, y él tiene horas 
libres, en casa, quiere ver que es lo que 
hace cuando está libre en casa? ¿Estás 
lista? Tu no sabías de esto ni tú tampoco. 
Corre el video por favor. ¡Tu marido con 
ellos, teniendo sexo a la vez! 
 
¡No soy yo! 
 
¡No te puedo creer, cómo te atreves, 
cómo te atreves!  
 
¡En serio! 
 
¡Estúpido! 
 
[Parcialmente Inaudible] 
 
Ponte de pie. ¿Qué le tienes que decir a 
ella? 
 
¡Que es una pinche puta! 

You work a lot, right, and he has free time 
at home, want to see what he does when 
he is free at home? Are you ready? You 
didn’t know about this or your. Run the 
video please. Your husband with them, 
having sex! 
 
That’s not me! 
 
I cannot believe you, how dare you, how 
dare you! 
 
Seriously! 
 
Stupid! 
 
[Partially inaudible] 
 
Stand up; what do you have to say to her? 
 
 
That she’s a fucking whore! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Transcript #17 – November 4, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Guest 1: 
 
 
 
Audience: 
 
Guest 2: 
 
 
José Luis González: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

¡Porque es cosas que son indebidas, y 
hasta la migra va venir y nos va llevar a 
todos! 
 
Maricón! Maricón! Maricón! Maricón! 
 
Te va llevar a ti porque no tienes papeles.  
 
 
Cuidado, cuidado. Ok, señor, es verdad 
todo esto, es verdad lo que él está 
diciendo, que en el rancho está su…Ok, 
cuidado… 
 
 

Because it’s wrong, and even 
immigration will come to take us all! 
 
 
Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! Faggot 
 
They’ll take you because you don’t have 
any papers! 
 
Careful, careful. Ok, sir, is all this true, is 
what he is saying true, that in the ranch, 
your.....Ok, careful... 
 

 
 

Transcript #18 – November 4, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Audience: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

¡Puñal, puñal! 
 
¡Es un puñal, es un baboso!  
 

Faggot, faggot! 
 
He’s a faggot, he’s a dumbass! 
 

 
 

Transcript #19 – November 5, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Guest 1: 
 
 
José Luis González: 
 
Guest 1: 
 
 
 
Guest 2: 
 
 

Yo contraté una puta, para que lo 
enamore. 
 
¿A quién, a una mujer de la vida fácil? 
 
Así es, para que lo enamore, y ahora me 
entero que el pendejo se quiere casar con 
ella. 
 
Y eres una puta! Él sabe que eres una … 
 

I hired a whore, so that she could make 
him fall in love  
 
Who, a woman from the streets? 
 
  That’s right, so she could make him fall 
in love, and now I find out that the idiot 
wants to get married to her.  
 
And you're a whore! He knows you're a… 

 
 



Transcript #20 – November 5, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Guest 1: 
 
Guest 2: 
 
Guest 1: 
 
Guest 2: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
 
Guest 1: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
Guest 1: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
Guest 1: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
Guest 1: 
 
 
Audience Member: 
 
José Luis González: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
 
 

Solo para mujeres. 
 
¿Eres maricón? 
 
¡No soy maricón y te lo demuestro! 
 
Pues que según andas de pu…  
 
Es puñal, y él lo quiere para él.  
 
 
¿Yo Puñal, yo Puñal? 
 
Yo pienso que sí. 
 
¿Yo Puñal? 
 
Ya 
 
¿Quieres ver que no soy puñal? 
 
Sí, yo pienso que sí. 
 
 ¿Quieres ver que no soy puñal, quieres 
ver? ¡Pásale pa’cá!   
 
Yo pienso que él lo quiere a él, por eso… 
 
¿Y qué le tienes que decir a él? 
 
¡Que también es puñal, los dos son 
puñales!...Son huecos los dos.  
 

Only for women. 
 
Are you a faggot?  
 
I’m not a faggot and I’ll show you! 
 
Well I’ve heard that you’re a fa… 
 
He’s a faggot, and he wants him for 
himself. 
 
I’m a faggot, I’m a faggot? 
 
I think so. 
 
I’m a faggot? 
 
Yeah 
 
Want to see that I’m not a faggot? 
 
Yeah, I think so! 
 
Want to see that I’m not a faggot, come 
over here! 
 
I think that he wants him, that’s why… 
 
And what do you have to say to him?  
 
That he’s also a faggot, they are both 
faggots!..They are both faggots. a…  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Transcript #21 – November 11, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Guest 1: 
 
 
Audience: 
 
Guest 2: 
 
José Luis González: 
 
Audience Member: 
 
 
Guest 2: 
 
 

¡Te lo dije, mira, mira lo que hace allí! 
 
 
¡Puñal! ¡Puñal! ¡Puñal! ¡Puñal! 
 
¡Acá está! 
 
A ver, ¿qué pasó? Adelante! 
 
Yo lo he visto bailar con puñales. 
 
¿No serás tú el puñal, no serás puñal, 
güey? 
 
 

I told you, look, look at what he’s doing 
there! 
 
Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! Faggot! 
 
Here it is! 
 
Alright, what happened? Go ahead! 
 
I’ve seen him dance with faggots! 
 
Are you sure it’s not you who’s the 
faggot, you sure you’re not a faggot, 
dumbass? 
 

 
 

Transcript #22 – December 7, 2010, 11:00 am PST 
 

 Spanish English 
Guest 1: 
 
 
 
 
Guest 2: 
 
 
 
Guest 1: 
 
 

Estoy hasta la madre, de que mi primo 
todo el tiempo me está diciendo que soy 
un gay, que soy joto, ¿me entiendes? 
Todo el tiempo lo está diciendo… 
 
¿Qué, güey? ¡Pinche puñal!  Si todos mis 
amigos andan viéndolo allí, andando con 
todas su maritas allí como puro maricón. 
 
Y tú pendejo con tu cabeza, man…¿Sabes 
qué?, eso no es cierto… 
 
 

I’m up to here with it, my cousin’s always 
telling me I’m gay, that I’m a faggot, you 
get me? He’s going around saying it all 
the time… 
 
What, dumbass? Fucking faggot! All my 
friends see him there, going around with 
all his little faggotries like a total faggot. 
 
And you, idiot, what’s with your head, 
man…You know what? That’s not true… 
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Appendix C: 
DVD of Clips 

 
  



 
 

Appendix D:  
Liberman/EstrellaTV 

Stations 
 



Liberman Broadcasting/EstrellaTV Station List 

Disclaimer: Data on Liberman Broadcasting’s complete holdings and affiliate agreements is 
difficult to obtain.  This list reflects Liberman Broadcasting owned and operated stations as well 
as affiliates as of February 9, 2011.  Any inaccuracies are purely unintentional. 
 
 City Call Sign 

Dallas/Fort Worth, TX KMPX 
Denver, CO KETD 
Houston, TX KZJL 
Los Angeles, CA KRCA 
Phoenix, AZ KVPA-LD 
Salt Lake City, UT KPNZ 
San Diego, CA KSDX-LP 
Englewood, CO KWHD-TV 
Palatine, IL (serving Chicago) WESV-LP 
Austin, TX KVUE 
Portland, OR KGW 
San Antonio, TX KENS 
Tucson, AZ KTTU 
Palm Springs, CA KRET-TV 
Odessa-Midland, TX KPEJ-TV 
Brownsville/McAllen, TX KVEO-TV 
El Paso, TX KTSM-TV 
Tyler/Longview, TX KETK-TV 
Waco/Temple, TX KWKT-TV 
Reno/Sparks, NV KNRC-LD 
Albuquerque, NM KOAT-TV 
Roswell, NM KOCT 
Silver City, NM KOVT 
Orlando, FL WKCF 
Tampa, FL WMOR-TV 
West Palm Beach, FL WPBF 
Bakersfield, CA KBBV-TV 
Wichita-Hutchinson, KS  KCTU-TV 
Las Vegas, NV KVMY 
Miami, FL WSVN 
Tulsa, OK  KXAP-LD 
Greensboro/ Winston Salem, NC  WCWG 
Omaha, NE  KPTM 
San Francisco/Sacramento, CA KTNC-TV 
Fresno, CA KFRE-TV 
New York, NY WPIX 
Monterey-Salinas, CA  KMBY-TV 
Yuma, AZ/El Centro, CA KSWT-TV 
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Appendix E: 

Materials obtained from 
FCC through FOIA 

 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: The documents included in this Appendix represent the entirety of 
documents obtained from the FCC through a Freedom of Information 
Act request by the National Hispanic Media Coalition.  Pages were 
numbered by the FCC and any gaps are the result of the FCC’s 
production and not any choice made by NHMC or GLAAD.  
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Appendix F: 

Billboard Magazine 
article on Spanish-
language indecency 

  







"Pobre nalga, dicen que tienes granitos de montar tanta guagua."

The woes of a pimple-ridden butt, set to the tune of Don Omar's hit "Pobre Diabla,"
greets listeners of Miami morning show "El Vacilón" on WXDJ (El Zol, 95.7 FM), a
Spanish Broadcasting System (SBS) Spanish top 40 station. It's 9:30 a.m., and hosts
Enrique Santos and Joe Ferrero are on a roll, happily alternating between discussions
on immigration and sexually themed parodies. 

"I rented a Barney video for my 2-year-old, and it had pornographic images on it," a
woman supposedly calling a video store says. "I've never seen bigger testicles in my
life. Sir, have you ever seen testicles that big on your TV screen?" The attendant
mutters no. "Then," the woman adds, "he flipped her around and gave it from behind.
I had to tell my child it was a black hole."

Further up the Miami dial, DJs on Univision tropical WRTO (La Kalle 98.3 FM) are
doing their best to keep up, with a parody of a cable guy who comes calling on a
lonely housewife.

"Where should I put my cable?" he asks. 

"Sonia, who has no cash, bares her breasts," a narrator intones. " 'Where do you think?'
" she coyly answers.

Welcome to Spanish-language morning shows. Sophomoric. Hugely popular.
Sometimes even hysterically funny. And quite often skirting the FCC's boundaries of
decency. But, unlike their English counterparts, they almost never get fined. 

The reason, experts say, is basic: There simply are not as many indecency complaints
filed with the FCC against Spanish-language broadcasters. And, when they are filed,
they are hard to follow up on because of language and cultural barriers. 

Although the number of overall indecency complaints to the FCC has skyrocketed in
the past two years—since Janet Jackson's 2004 Super Bowl halftime show "wardrobe
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Indecent Behavior
By: Leila Cobo
Publication: Billboard Magazine
Date: June 24, 2006
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malfunction," to be precise—only one fine has been levied against Spanish-language
radio and TV stations for indecency, profanity or obscenity issues since 1999. The
increase is attributed to organized letter writing campaigns by conservative activists.

Since 2000, the FCC has issued 43 notices of apparent liability (NAL) to TV and radio
stations, which the FCC issues prior to actually fining someone. Only six pertained to
Spanish-language broadcasts. Actual fines were levied in 14 cases to date, including
the one Spanish radio infraction. In other words, approximately 7% of fines were
directed toward a Spanish broadcast. 

"There is definitely a heightened focus on indecency enforcement right now in
general," says Francisco Montero, a partner with Washington, D.C., law firm Fletcher,
Heald and Hildreth. He specializes in Spanish-language media, and his clients include
the Puerto Rican Broadcasters Assn. and Bustos Media. "And I think it would be
logical, if it hasn't already happened, to see some of that spill over into the Spanish-
language media. But, you need complaints to be filed. And for a Spanish broadcast to
be so offensive to somebody that they would file a complaint, first of all, they would
need to understand it. And that rules out a good portion of the potential complainants
in the market."

Even when offended, Latins tend to simply switch the dial. In part, this may be
because some of the most daring Spanish-language morning shows also happen to be
those deeply entrenched in the community. El Cucuy de la Mañana, for example, the
morning DJ at regional Mexican KLAX Los Angeles (La Raza), has a reputation for
very risqué comments, but he is also a man of many philanthropic ventures that range
from a health center in Los Angeles to telethons and fund-raisers for multiple causes
around the world. 

Moreover, the process of complaining to the FCC is alien to many listeners. Dr. Mari
Castañeda, an associate professor of communication at the University of Massachusetts
at Amherst, says Latinos may be less likely to file complaints. 

"There is a cultural component that has to do with political repression in Latin
America," Castañeda says. "You don't want to rock the boat if it means oppression, or
in the case of the United States, if you're undocumented [you could risk] deportation.
Although I know lots of people in the Latino community who are very disturbed by



the amount of 'indecent and vulgar' language. But they also feel like the system is so
big and confusing, that what can be done?"

The FCC says it does not classify specifically how many of its complaints refer to
Spanish-language media and that it does not monitor a station or broadcast unless
someone files a complaint.

"They get away with it simply because not enough complaints have reached the ears
of the FCC in Washington," says Bill Tanner, longtime SBS senior VP of programming,
who now has his own radio consultancy, Bill Tanner & Associates. "Those shows are
funny as hell. And they're dirty as hell."

What constitutes "dirty" gets fuzzy with Spanish-language media. 

For one, the FCC's rules regarding the broadcast of obscene, indecent and profane
programming are very clear—it is not allowed. But the guidelines to determine what is
obscene, indecent or profane are often highly subjective. 

Obscene speech, which is prohibited from airing at any time, must meet a "three-
prong standard": The average listener must determine that it can incite lustful
thoughts, the material must offensively describe sexual conduct and the material must
lack serious literary, artistic, political or scientific value.

Profane language (the "F" word, for example) cannot be broadcast between 6 a.m. and
10 p.m. Neither can indecent material. The FCC defines indecency as "any language or
material that, in context, depicts or describes sexual or excretory activities in a way
that is patently offensive as measured by contemporary community standards for the
broadcast medium." 

Applying these standards to English-language content is challenging. For Spanish, it is
sometimes impossible.

"In our case, our on-air talent has all the FCC guidelines," says Eduardo León, VP of
programming for Liberman Broadcasting, which owns nine radio stations and four TV
outlets. "But in Latin radio, especially in regional Mexican stations, we use a lot of
double-entendre. There isn't an exact translation for many words."



The word "chingar" is a good example. It can be applied to a sexual act. Or to hitting
someone. Or to something that's amazing. Or excellent. 

The word "tirar" means "to pull." It is also applied to a sexual act. And the list goes on.

"If someone wanted to file a complaint with the FCC with words like this, they would
have a really hard time," León says, noting that the FCC has never fined Liberman for
obscenity or indecency broadcasts. 

In fact, none of the major Spanish-language networks have been fined for indecency.
The sole fine against a Spanish-language station for indecency came in 2001, against
WLDI Puerto Rico. The $16,800 fine was for broadcasting graphic sexual language on
the "Morning Party" morning show on local station WCOM (FM) in 1999, which at the
time was a licensee of WLDI.

Univision is one of the few radio networks that had to pay a fine to the FCC, though it
was not for indecency. The 2005 penalty stemmed from a 2002 incident in which a gay
man was outted during a phone call broadcast on the "Raul Brindis and Pepito Show"
(see sidebar). The show aired on stations then owned by Hispanic Broadcasting Corp.
The fine was for unlawfully failing to obtain consent before broadcasting the
conversation. 

Perhaps the most notorious Spanish-language FCC fine was imposed on WXDJ Miami
after Ferrero and Santos got Cuban president Fidel Castro on the phone by pretending
to be his friend Hugo Chávez. The 2003 prank was reported internationally and
resulted in the FCC levying a $3,500 fine—again, not for indecency, but for failing to
obtain Castro's permission to air the call.

Ferrero and Santos raised the fine money, in pennies, and personally delivered it to
the FCC's offices in D.C., becoming local heroes in the process. Ironically, Tanner says,
their FCC fine has given them a free pass to say pretty much anything in Miami.

Whether they are worried about fines or not, Spanish stations certainly take
precautions with their programming. Sources say most morning shows now run on
delay, and many extreme prank calls are staged. 



Clear Channel, which last year expanded into Spanish-language programming, does
not allow anything offensive on the air, regardless of format or language, insists
Alfredo Alonso, the company's senior VP of Hispanic radio. 

"Every year, every on-air talent in the company has to go through a test of what is
acceptable and what is not acceptable. There really isn't a set of words. When you
listen to something that crosses the line, you know it . . . In Spanish radio, there is the
perception that the raunchier you get, the more ratings you get. I think that will
change when you get a big fine," Alonso says.

But until that big fine drops? According to Arbitron, the highest-rated morning show
overall in New York, for example, is the notoriously racy "El Vacilón De La Mañana"
on tropical WSKQ (97.9 La Mega) where sex is a daily topic and risqué equals ratings.

"Not everybody likes a dirty joke," Tanner says. "But enough people do that it's an
accepted form of humor in America. Now, does that mean that it is permissible to
have outrageous filth on the radio while mommy is taking Billy and Susie to school?
No. But the issue is where you draw the line. I used to have a rule with my morning
shows: 'Guys, if it's going to be dirty, it better be exponentially funny.' Because if it's
just a little bit funny and real dirty, you are in serious trouble." ••••


